
 Agenda

Page 1

Cabinet Member for Jobs and Regeneration

Time and Date
1.00 pm on Wednesday, 21st October, 2020

Place
This meeting will be held remotely. The meeting can be viewed live by pasting this link 
into your browser:- https://youtu.be/xdJMQjim2dQ https://youtu.be/xdJMQjim2dQ

1. Apologies  

2. Declaration of Interests  

3. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 4)

(a) To agree the minutes of the Cabinet Member for Jobs and 
Regeneration held on 14 July, 2020  

(b) Matters Arising  

4. Green Homes Grant LAD Scheme Funding  (Pages 5 - 10)

Report of the Director of Business, Investment and Culture

NOTE: In accordance with the Constitution, the Chair of the Scrutiny Co-
ordination Committee, (or their nominee) will be invited to attend the meeting 
for this item of business to agree the need for urgency such that call-in 
arrangements will not apply. The reason for urgency is that the Green Homes 
Grant Local Authority Delivery (LAD) Scheme was made available to Councils 
with the capacity to deliver between October 2020 - March 2021. As a result, 
the timescales for delivery are already tight, and further delay to the 
acceptance of the funding will reduce the time to deliver further.

5. Outstanding Issues  

There are no outstanding issues.

6. Any other items of public business which the Cabinet Member decides to 
take as matters of urgency because of the special circumstances 
involved.  

Julie Newman, Director of Law and Governance, Council House Coventry

Tuesday, 13 October 2020

Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is 

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/xdJMQjim2dQ


Page 2

Suzanne Bennett e mail suzanne.bennett@coventry.gov.uk

Membership: Councillors J O’Boyle (Cabinet Member) and P Male (Shadow Cabinet 
Member) 

Suzanne Bennett 
e mail suzanne.bennett@coventry.gov.uk



– 1 –

Coventry City Council
Minutes of the Meeting of Cabinet Member for Jobs and Regeneration held at 

1.00 pm on Tuesday, 14 July 2020

Present: Councillor J O’Boyle
Members:  (Cabinet Member)

Councillor P Male (Shadow Cabinet Member)
Other Members: Councillor R Brown (Chair of the Scrutiny Co-ordination 

Committee)

Employees:
S Bennett, Law and Governance
P Helm, Finance
A Walster, Director of Streetscene and Regulatory Services

  
Public Business

10. Declaration of Interests 

There were no declarations of interest.

11. Minutes 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 3 June, 2020 were agreed and signed as a 
true record.

There were no matters arising.

12. Whitley Depot Rebuild - Additional Capital Allocation 

The Cabinet Member for Jobs and Regeneration considered a report of the 
Director of Streetscene and Regulatory Services which indicated that the Cabinet 
approved the provision of a new welfare and administration building at the City 
Council’s depot in Whitley in 10 April 2018 (Their Minute 154/17 refers). Following 
detailed design work, a submission for planning permission and tendering of the 
building construction contract, the project costs have risen to £5.07m compared to 
the original estimated costs of £4.35m, leaving a funding gap of £0.72m. 

The report outlined proposals to reduce the funding gap by reducing the overall 
size of the building by 10%, predominately removing administrative office space 
and, in consultation with colleagues in the planning and highways teams, the 
external finishes to the proposed building have been downgraded. This has 
reduced the funding gap to £0.48m. 

The report sought approval to the allocation of an additional £0.48m funding for 
the project as abandoning the rebuild project would leave the existing mix of 
temporary and permanent buildings that are beyond their economic and practical 
life. The proposal also continues to offer a revenue saving to the City Council of 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



– 2 –

£270kper annum compared to continuing to maintain and heat the existing building 
stock at Whitley Depot and Jackson Road. 

In accordance with the Constitution, Councillor R Brown, Chair of the Scrutiny Co-
ordination Committee attended the meeting for this item and agreed the need for 
urgency so that call-in arrangements would not apply. The reason for urgency was 
that the tender deadline expires on 17 July, 2020 and to delay the contract award 
would risk the project having to be retendered and the capital costs increasing. 

RESOLVED that the Cabinet Member for Jobs and Regeneration approves 
the allocation of an additional £0.48m of capital money from corporate 
resources to the rebuild of the Whitley Depot welfare and administration 
building. 

13. Outstanding Issues 

There were no outstanding issues.

14. Any Other Items of Urgent Public Business 

There were no other items of urgent public business.

(Meeting closed at 1.20 pm)

Page 4



 Public report
Cabinet Member Report 

Cabinet Member for Jobs and Regeneration                                                        21st October 2020

Name of Cabinet Member: 
Cabinet Member for Jobs and Regeneration - Councillor J O’Boyle

Director Approving Submission of the report:
Director of Business, Investment and Culture

Ward(s) affected:
All

Title:
Green Homes Grant LAD Scheme Funding

Is this a key decision?

No - Although the proposals affect more than two electoral wards, the impact is not expected 
to be significant.

Executive Summary:

Coventry City Council (CCC) has secured £530,000 funding as part of BEIS’ (Department for 
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy) Green Homes Grant (GHG) Local Authority Delivery 
(LAD) Scheme. The scheme aims to raise the energy efficiency rating of low income and low 
EPC rated households (those rated at EPC Band E, F or G), allowing the council to support some 
of the most vulnerable residents in the City. CCC will work with our existing Affordable Warmth 
delivery partner, Act on Energy (AOE), to ensure all grant funding is spent by the end of this 
financial year (Mach 2021). AOE are a local energy conservation charity that have been procured 
by CCC to deliver the existing ‘Keeping Coventry Warm’ scheme, including operating an advice 
line for residents, and ensuring delivery of physical interventions through our existing funding 
streams. 

The LAD scheme will be used to support at least an additional 46 low-income households within 
the City with £10,000 grants towards the cost of energy efficiency measures, including but not 
limited to, external wall insulation (EWI), cavity wall insulation (CWI), roof insulation and heat 
pumps. This scheme will complement the existing ‘Keeping Coventry Warm’ scheme that has 
been operating in Coventry for several years, by bringing in an additional £530,000 of funding to 
support residents under a slightly different eligibility criteria.    

This funding is essential to support some of the most vulnerable residents in our community to 
improve the energy efficiency of their home, make their homes warmer and reduce the levels of 
fuel poverty across the City. This could in turn lead to: 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



1.Reduction in health-related morbidity and mortality associated with living in cold homes.
2.Reduced demand for health and care services.
3. Improved energy efficiency for the houses supported, reducing their energy bills and 

carbon footprint.

Recommendations:

The Cabinet Member for Jobs and Regeneration is recommended: 

1) To approve the acceptance and act as accountable body for the grant funding from BEIS 
totalling £530,000 to deliver the Green Homes Grant LAD Scheme. 

2) To delegate authority to the Director of Business, Investment and Culture and the Director 
of Finance, following consultation with the Director of Law and Governance, to negotiate 
final terms and approve entry into:

a) A Memorandum of Understanding between the Secretary of State for Business, 
Energy and Industrial Strategy and Coventry City Council. 

3) That following completion of the actions set out in Recommendation 2 above, to delegate 
authority to the Director of Business, Investment & Culture to manage and administer the 
Grant Funding Agreement with BEIS and the agreements with the Council’s delivery partner 
(Act On Energy). 

List of Appendices included:
None

Background papers:
None 

Other useful documents
None

Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?
No

Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or 
other body?
No

Will this report go to Council?
No

Green Homes Grant LAD Scheme Funding

Page 6



1. Context (or background)

1.1 Fuel poverty is a significant problem for some Coventry households, with many low income 
and vulnerable individuals affected. Across the city, 12.1% of all households are fuel poor, 
consequently, are unable to afford to stay warm in their homes. 

1.2 The Green Homes Grant (GHG) Local Authority Delivery (LAD) Scheme will provide 
£530,000 additional funding used to tackle fuel poverty in the City. This funding will need to 
be spent by end March 2021. 

1.3 The funding will be used to support some of the most vulnerable residents (at least 46 
households) in our community to improve the energy efficiency of their home, make their 
homes warmer and reduce the levels of fuel poverty across the City. The measures will 
include, but not be limited to, external wall insulation (EWI), cavity wall insulation (CWI), 
roof insulation and heat pumps. All homes targeted for support will need to be owner-
occupied, have an income less than £30,000 and an EPC rating of E, F or G. 

2. Options considered and recommended proposal

2.1 The first option could have been to decline the opportunity to apply for the GHG Lad 
Scheme funding, but this is not recommended as the Council is committed to tackling fuel 
poverty and reducing carbon emissions within the City. The GHG Lad Scheme supports 
many objectives of the Council Plan, namely: 
- Reducing the impact of poverty. 
- Reducing health inequalities. 
- Protecting our most vulnerable people. 
- Improving health and wellbeing. 

2.2 The recommended option is for the Council to act as accountable body for this funding 
scheme. This will allow the existing ‘Keeping Coventry Warm’ frameworks to be utilised for 
delivery but ensure an additional £530,000 is drawn into the Council to support some of the 
most vulnerable residents within the City. Working with our delivery partner, we will ensure 
delivery of the scheme by the end of March 2021. Not only will this funding support some of 
the most vulnerable residents in the City, it will also improve employability for local 
contractors who will be engaged with the project.  

3. Results of consultation undertaken

3.1 The GHG LAD Scheme bid was developed by multiple teams within the Council (Climate 
Change & Sustainability, Public Health & Facilities Management) in addition to our 
procured ‘Keeping Coventry Warm’ service providers, Act on Energy. Each of the above 
had the opportunity to influence the GHG LAD bid. Very tight timescales in the opportunity 
to bid prevented further consultation.   

4. Timetable for implementing this decision

4.1 The LAD scheme bid application has been reviewed by the relevant funding body, BEIS, 
and has been successful. 

4.2 BEIS will issue Funding Agreements which will allow the project to start within 10 days of 
the Council having accepted and signed the MoU.

Page 7



4.3 Once this is agreed, our deliver partner will be issued with an updated contract to account 
for the changes in terms with this additional funding being drawn down. 

4.4 This process is expected to be completed within October 2020, to allow delivery and 
completion of the scheme by March 2021. 

5. Comments from Director of Finance and Director of Law and Governance

5.1 Financial implications

5.1.1 If approved, the council would become the accountable body for the scheme as 
specified in the report, totalling £530,000. Whilst there is some financial risk, there is 
no immediate implication of being the accountable body. A breakdown on the funding 
is as below: 

o Capital funding of £460,000. This will be held by Coventry City Council. Once 
works have been completed by contractors, they will invoice AOE. AOE will 
verify and quality check the work before invoicing the Council. Moneys will then 
be paid direct to AOE, who will be responsible for fulfilling the existing invoice 
received from their contractors. This will reduce risk to the Council by only 
making payment to our procured affordable warmth delivery partner and not a 
number of different contractors. 

o AOE revenue/admin costs of £38,880. This is to allow AOE to deliver the 
increased capacity of the schemes including: management fees, home visits, 
comms & marketing of the Programme. 

o CCC revenue/admin costs of £31,120. This includes a fee of £16,000 to utilise a 
bespoke data service concept to enable greater impact monitoring of the 
deployed energy efficiency measures. This data service will be an innovative 
first of a kind solution that aims to provide more in-depth visibility and validation 
of projects such as the GHG LAD scheme.

5.1.2 Successful bids will be paid to CCC in two instalments; an upfront 50% paid within 10 
days of signing of the MoU, with a further 50% of the Grant being paid within 10 days 
following submission of the third monthly report.

5.1.3 No match funding is required as part of this funding scheme.

5.1.4 Act on Energy have recently been awarded the tender to deliver CCC’s existing 
affordable warmth scheme ‘Keeping Coventry Warm’. As a result, their economic and 
financial standing has recently been assessed by procurement, including analysis of 
commercial risk reports from Creditsafe. The Company passed all of this financial 
criteria.    

5.2 Legal implications

5.2.1 The Council will act as the accountable body for the GHG LAD Scheme on the terms of 
BEIS. The Council will need to sign the MoU and other appropriate documentation (e.g. 
Data Sharing Agreement, Privacy Notice etc.) approved by the Council’s legal services. 
The terms and conditions will be devolved to our delivery partner, Act on Energy (AOE) to 
ensure full compliance. These will ensure appropriate conditions and obligations which are 
imposed upon the Council are passed to the grant recipients who receive the funding for 
delivering projects.

Page 8



5.2.2 There is a risk of clawback in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions    
set out in any agreement entered into between the Council and the Funding Body (BEIS). 
However, AOE will undertake strict monitoring of compliance, which will be spot-checked 
by the Council (in addition to the measures identified in paragraph 6.2 of this report) to 
minimise this risk.

6. Other implications

6.1 How will this contribute to the Council Plan (www.coventry.gov.uk/councilplan/)?

6.1.1 The Council Plan for 2016 – 2024 sets out the vision and priorities for Coventry. 
Under the heading of ‘Reducing the Impact of Poverty’, the Plan states that supporting 
residents experiencing fuel poverty is a priority. The GHG LAD Scheme will contribute 
to supporting fuel poor households, and will also support other core aims of the 
Council Plan, including: 

o Reducing the impact of poverty. 
o Reducing health inequalities. 
o Protecting our most vulnerable people. 
o Improving health and wellbeing.  

6.1.2 Action to tackle fuel poverty also has multiple policy benefits. In addition to 
contributing to the Council Plan, it will have a positive effect in terms of:

o Improving the quality of housing. 
o Increasing disposable incomes.
o Creating employment opportunities.
o Preventing ill health and excess winter deaths arising from the effects of excess 

cold.
o Improving opportunities for home study and therefore educational attainment.
o Reducing carbon emissions.

6.2 How is risk being managed?

6.2.1 The Council will act as the accountable body for a total £530,000 of BEIS funding and 
will be responsible for ensuring that the funding is spent in compliance with the 
programme’s regulations before end March 2021.

6.2.2 To reduce risk to the Council, the Council will only enter contractual agreements with 
our delivery partner, Act on Energy (AOE). It will be the responsibility of AOE to 
manage relationships with their contractor network.

6.2.3 During the duration of the scheme, a project board will be in operation. The board will 
meet to discuss: Progress against KPIs, evaluation of marketing, issue logs, project 
risk registers and individual cases where necessary.

6.3 What is the impact on the organisation?

6.3.1 The scheme will be delivered within existing staff resources.
6.4 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)

Page 9

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/councilplan/


6.4.1 Fuel Poverty disproportionately affects householders who are vulnerable and on low 
incomes, and particularly those with ill-health or disabilities. Increasing the capacity of 
funding available to support these residents is of vital importance.

6.4.2 Implementing the Warm and Healthy Homes for Disabled Householders Scheme will 
help to support some of these householders.

6.5 Implications for (or impact on) climate change and the environment

6.5.1 The housing sector is responsible for a substantial proportion of carbon dioxide 
emissions in the city. Energy efficiency improvements to the housing stock will play an 
important part in reducing carbon emissions. The scheme will also support additional 
jobs in the low carbon (e.g. insulation) sector.  

6.6 Implications for partner organisations?

6.6.1 The funding received through this scheme will have potentially positive implications for 
partner health and social care organisations because of improvements in the health 
and wellbeing of households supported.

Report author(s):
Name and job title:
Bret Willers, Head of Climate Change & Sustainability

Directorate:
Business, Investment and Culture

Tel and email contact:
Email: Bret.Willers@coventry.gov.uk
Tel No: 02476 977464

Enquiries should be directed to the above person.
Contributor/approve
r name

Title Service Area Date doc 
sent out

Date response 
received or 
approved

Contributors:
Suzanne Bennett Governance Services 

Officer
Law and 
Governance

05/10/2020 05/10/2020

Names of approvers 
for submission: 
(officers and members)
Bret Willers Head of Climate Change 

& Sustainability 
Business, 
Investment and 
Culture

05/10/2020 05/10/2020

Finance: Phil Helm Finance Manager Finance 05/10/2020 05/10/2020
Legal: Emma Kirby Property Lawyer Law and 

Governance
06/10/2020 07/10/2020

Andy Williams Director of Business, 
Investment and Culture

- 06/10/2020 12/10/2020

Councillor J O’Boyle Cabinet Member for 
Jobs and Regeneration 

- 12/10/20 12/10/20

This report is published on the council's website: www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings 

Page 10

mailto:Bret.Willers@coventry.gov.uk
http://www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Green Homes Grant LAD Scheme Funding

